DENALI COMMISSION
PUBLIC MEETING

Via MS Teams and In Person
Anchorage, Alaska

October 17, 2025
MINUTES
PRESENT:

Staff:
John Whittington, Moderator
Katie Conway, Denali Commission

Public Attendees
Sandra Tsinnie
Marce Simeon

Jennifer Price
Mike Jones

CALL TO ORDER
Moderator Whittington started the meeting at 10:02 a.m.

BACKGROUND

Two years ago, Congress passed the Inflation Reduction Act which included Build America, Buy
America (BABA) requirements for grant funded projects. The Denali Commission, which
provides grants for projects in rural Alaska, received feedback that the BABA requirements could
be restrictive and will pursue a waiver for the projects they fund. This public meeting was to
obtain public input on the issue.

DISCUSSION

Mike Jones said he was from the northernmost Haida village in Alaska. He asked how the
BABA program benefited Alaskan tribes.

Moderator Whittington said BABA mandates that projects use steel and manufactured products
made in the United States. The Denali Commission’s waiver will focus on bulk fuel facilities,
power generation projects, and transmission lines. Using products made in the United States can
often increase project costs and timelines. The feedback received so far has indicated there are
no benefits to the BABA requirements for rural Alaska.

Mike Jones asked for more information on the Denali Commission.

Denali Commission October 17, 2025
Public Meeting 1



Moderator Whittington said the Denali Commission was a small regional commission focused on
rural Alaska infrastructure projects related to energy, health clinics, community buildings, and
transportation, as well as workforce development, broadband communication systems, and
anything that increases economic development in rural Alaska. Its primary function is issuing
project grants in conjunction with statewide agencies like the Alaska Energy Authority (AEA)
and the Alaska Village Electric Cooperative.

Mike Jones asked what the BABA does for the Denali Commission.

Moderator Whittington said the Denali Commission was focused on BABA compliance.
Community feedback indicates the requirements have been neutral or had negative impacts on
rural projects in Alaska. Community feedback has indicated the BABA requirements increase
costs and timelines.

Mike Jones asked if the Denali Commission was looking for tribal support for the BABA
requirement waiver.

Moderator Whittington said the Denali Commission believes the BABA requirements have made
rural projects more difficult to complete and would be asking for a waiver of the requirements on
behalf of the projects they fund.

Mike Jones said his village was small and only had about 80 residents. He did not know of any
village projects affected by the BABA requirements. He asked if the Denali Commission was
doing any projects in southeast Alaska.

Katie Conway said the Denali Commission was doing projects in southeast Alaska, but she could
not recall specific projects off the top of her head.

Marce Simeon said she was the tribal administrator for the Native Village of Tazlina, a small
tribe located in the Copper River Valley. She did not believe the BABA requirements had an
impact on her village yet, but they were planning a community hall project with American
Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds that would expire next December. She asked if the BABA
requirements were specific to the three categories mentioned earlier or any federally funded
project.

Moderator Whittington said the BABA requirements were not limited to the three categories
discussed earlier. The Denali Commission was limiting their waiver request to those three
categories because getting a waiver can be challenging. However, other agencies have waivers
for different types of projects.

Marce Simeon asked how a village could make sure they were in compliance with the BABA
requirements for federally funded rural projects.

Moderator Whittington said the agency that provides the funding for a project would be the one
you should check with to see if they have applied for a BABA requirement waiver. If you have
an ongoing or upcoming project, contact the funding agency for their BABA requirement status.

Denali Commission October 17, 2025
Public Meeting 2



Marce Simeon said she did not have the authority to speak on behalf of the council, but as a
tribal administrator who manages and oversees multiple programs, anything that increases costs
or timelines is not beneficial to rural Alaska. As a rural community, even though we are on the
road system, we have issues accessing certain materials. The BABA requirements could
negatively impact small communities both on and off the road system.

Sandra Tsinnie said she was the plant operations director in Tazlina, Alaska. She did not have
any questions at this time.

Jennifer Price said she was the director of strategy for the Copper River Native Association. She
asked if there was a list of agencies that were subject to the BABA requirements.

Moderator Whittington said the Made in America Office was part of the Office of Management
and Budget. Their website has a list of agencies who have requested and/or been approved for
waivers. There can compact relationships between agencies and tribes, which may be treat the
BABA requirements differently. If you have a project funded by a grant and/or contract, the
BABA requirements probably apply, but you should contact the funding agency for details.

Jennifer Price said they were planning a small infrastructure project through Health Resources
and Services Administration (HRSA) with funding through a Congressional request. It will be a
walkway cover so ambulances can transport their passengers into the hospital during inclement
weather. Villages often have to ask contractors to come into their village to do projects, and
putting additional burdens on them could lessen the village’s ability to get contractors.

Moderator Whittington said even Congressionally delegated funding usually went through an
agency, so the agency should be contacted to see if the BABA requirements applied.

Katie Conway said many of the communities recently affected by the storm were in areas where
AEA requested a waiver on their behalf. She suggested repeating this meeting after the initial
storm response was complete.

WRITTEN PUBLIC COMMENTS

Moderator Whittington said there was also a two-week period for written comments. After
reviewing the written comments, they would discuss whether another meeting was needed to
hear from the areas affected by the recent storm. He asked everyone to provide written comments
and encourage others to do so as well. The more public comments received on the impact of the
BABA requirements, the stronger the Denali Commission’s waiver request will be.

ADJOURNMENT

The meeting remained open from 10:38 a.m. to 11:57 a.m., at which time Moderator Whittington
closed the meeting.

Denali Commission October 17, 2025
Public Meeting 3



